
Rocky Reach Fish Forum 
Wednesday, 6 November 2013 
1:00 – 4:00 p.m. 
Chelan PUD Second Floor Conference Room 
Wenatchee, WA  

 

Meeting called by Steve Hemstrom      Chairperson, Tracy Hillman         
Notes taken by Suzanne Hodgson 
 

Attending Representatives: 

Hemstrom, Steve Chelan PUD (509) 661-4281 steven.hemstrom@chelanpud.org 
Irle, Pat (phone) Ecology (509) 454-7864p pirl461@ecy.wa.gov 
Lewis, Steve USFWS (509) 665-3508 x14 stephen_lewis@fws.gov 
Verhey, Patrick WDFW (509) 754-4624 patrick.verhey@dfw.wa.gov 
 
Attending Participants: 

Hillman, Tracy BioAnalysts (208) 321-0363 tracy.hillman@bioanalysts.net 
Hodgson, Suzanne Chelan PUD (509) 661-4758 suzanne.hodgson@chelanpud.org 
Jackson, Chad (phone) WDFW (509) 754-4624 x250 chad.jackson@dfw.wa.gov 
Keller, Lance Chelan PUD (509) 661-4299 lance.keller@chelanpud.org 
McLellan, Jason (phone) CCT (509) 263-1082 jason.mclellan@colvilletribes.com 
Miller, Donella (phone)  YN (509) 945-0132 mild@yakamafish-nsn.gov 
Nelle, RD USFWS (509) 548-7573 RD_Nelle@fws.gov 

Meeting Minutes 

I. Welcome and Introductions 

Tracy Hillman welcomed everyone to the Rocky Reach Fish Forum (RRFF) meeting and made known that 
voice recording of the meeting was initiated for note-taking purposes. 

II. Review of Agenda 

The agenda was approved with an addition from Steve Lewis regarding the Chelan County Milfoil 
Treatment Proposal. This item was added under the Resident Fish section of the agenda.  

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 1 

 
 

mailto:Tracy.hillman@bioanalysts.net


III. Review and Approval of Meeting Minutes 

Minutes from the 2 October 2013 meeting were discussed. Pat Irle requested more information on the 
species and location of larval freshwater mussels reported by Steve Hays in the Water Quality Report 
section of the draft notes (page 2, second paragraph). Also, Tracy Hillman noted that Ralph Lampman 
questioned a reference to comments attributed to Chris Peery under the Pacific Lamprey section of the 
draft notes (page 3, second paragraph). The RRFF directed Tracy Hillman to contact both Steve Hays and 
Chris Peery to get clarification on statements made in the draft notes. The RRFF agreed to retain the 
October meeting notes as draft, pending the addition of footnotes on these two areas of concern, for 
approval at the December meeting. 

Action Item:   

• Tracy Hillman will follow up with Steve Hays and Chris Peery and add appropriate footnotes to 
the draft notes for approval at the December meeting. 

IV. Water Quality 

Update on Water Quality in Macrophyte Beds Report 
Tracy Hillman reported that Steve Hays sent the draft Water Quality in Macrophyte Beds Report to the 
RRFF for their review, and that comments had been returned to Steve. He added that Steve is working 
on addressing the comments for the final report, which is due to the Forum on 15 November 2013. 

Action Item:   

• Steve Hays will send the final water quality in macrophyte beds report to the RRFF by 15 
November 2013.   

V. Pacific Lamprey 

Rocky Reach Project Effects (No Net Impact) 

Tracy Hillman e-mailed a PowerPoint presentation prepared by Bob Rose on Pacific Lamprey 
Assessments and Recovery Actions in the Mid-Columbia to the RRFF (see Attachment 1). Patrick Verhey 
reported that he and Bob had discussed the PowerPoint and agreed that Patrick will give the 
presentation to the Forum. He added that the work outlined in the presentation represents an effort 
toward a regional framework to address lamprey, and that it is a step forward in defining the various 
contributions and roles of the PUDs toward these efforts. Patrick walked through the presentation, 
noting that it is a draft and is for discussion purposes only. Highlights from the presentation included: 

• Primary objectives for the next seven years are to gather data on adults and juveniles in the 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 2 

 
 



mainstem and tributaries, and to carry out supplementation. 
• Focal objectives are outlined for years 2014 – 2016 and 2017 – 2020. 
• Objectives are detailed throughout the PowerPoint, and many objectives include a placeholder 

for financial support from the PUDs.  
• The conclusions refer to the regional nature of the work, the consistency of stated objectives 

with Mid-Columbia license agreements, and the connection between objectives and the intent 
of No Net Impact. 

Patrick noted that Bob Rose is analyzing agreements, plans, and 401s for the various PUDs to move the 
discussion forward on funding. Steve Lewis noted that each objective will not necessarily apply to each 
PUD. Steve Lewis also stated that he had met with USFWS policy representatives to get their thoughts, 
and that they supported the objectives. Patrick added that there was also support from WDFW policy 
representatives. Steve Lewis and Patrick both noted that this is an effort to fill in information gaps on 
lamprey. Steve Lewis pointed out that each management plan has some kind of adaptive management 
tool associated with them. Tracy Hillman asked if Bob Rose is still working on the main document and 
Steve Lewis said yes, and that he understood that the main document is about 80 – 90% complete. Tracy 
stated that this topic will be included on next month’s agenda. Discussion took place around the 
acronym JFP (Joint Fisheries Parties) and its meaning within the Forum. The group agreed that it was 
probably not appropriate for the RRFF. Co-Fisheries Managers or co-managers is a better phrase for the 
fish management agencies within the RRFF (i.e., USFWS, WDFW, Yakama Nation, and Colville Tribes). 
Steve Hemstrom asked if 2020 was the goal for completion on lamprey efforts. Steve Lewis replied that 
it is the goal, but that there may be spillover.   

Action Item:    

• At the request of Jason McLellan, Tracy Hillman will add Kirk Truscott, Colville Tribes, to the 
RRFF distribution list.  

Future Planning, Potential Juvenile Lamprey Measures, Timeframe and Budgeting  
 

Nothing to report. 
 

Adult HD PIT Monitoring 
 
Steve Hemstrom presented data on adult lamprey detections at the Rocky Reach exit antenna, showing 
that 11 adult lamprey passed as of 30 October. He added that of these 11 fish, six were initially detected 
in 2012 at Rocky Reach and five were initially detected in 2013 at Rocky Reach. Steve Hemstrom noted 
that those six fish did not spend the winter in the fish ladder. Discussion took place regarding over-
wintering and the timetable for lamprey spawning. Steve Hemstrom stated that 28 fish have been 
detected at Rock Island and 20 at Rocky Reach Dam (these fish were all tagged at Bonneville Dam). He 
added that nine were detected at Rocky Reach but not Rock Island. Steve Hemstrom also shared data 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 3 

 
 



from DART for adult lamprey passage observed as of 19 October, which shows 2,150 fish have passed 
Rock Island, 1,623 have passed Rocky Reach (75.5% of RI passage), and 21 have passed Wells (1.29% of 
RR passage). Tracy Hillman noted that the numbers counted at Wells Dam probably includes fish 
transported from Bonneville and Priest Rapids dams for the Wells passage study. Steve Hemstrom noted 
that he has not yet calculated passage time. Discussion took place regarding the possibility of 
consolidating data from the various PUDs on fish passage. Tracy indicated that each PUD will provide 
their own data, and that the Army Corp of Engineers or University of Idaho might be able to consolidate 
it.  

Tracy brought up Steve Hemstrom’s action item from October in which Steve was going to review past 
notes to look for references to the selection of HD PIT tags as the standard tool for lamprey monitoring. 
Steve Hemstrom reported that he found no notes that indicated a vote on the subject, but that the RRFF 
approved the use and location of HD detectors in Rocky Reach Dam, indicating that the Forum agreed to 
use HD tags (see March and April 2011 meeting notes). Patrick Verhey, Tracy Hillman, and Steve Lewis 
noted that the Forum had agreed to use HD PIT tags to monitor passage improvements made at Rocky 
Reach.    

Action Items:    
• Steve Hemstrom will send out the migration table that he discussed during the meeting.   
• Steve Hemstrom will look into the possibility of entering HD tag data into PTAGIS and will ask 

the Army Corp of Engineers for data on their detections.     

VI. Resident Fish 

Resident Fish Report – WDFW Revision 

Tracy Hillman stated that the resident fish report was sent to the Forum last week. Chad Jackson noted 
that there are not a lot of opportunities to enhance recreational fishing in the Rocky Reach reservoir. He 
added that it is not a system that is heavily populated with non-native predators. He stated that there 
are no major changes from the earlier version. Pat Irle requested clarification on Table 9 water quality 
results, and what the term “mean standard wq param” means. She also asked about the meaning of 
negative turbidity values. Chad asked Pat to e-mail her questions to him and he would get back to her on 
this. Tracy added that any questions on the report can be sent to Chad. Steve Hemstrom thanked Chad 
for the extra effort WDFW has put into this report.  

   Bull Trout and Tumwater Dam 

Steve Lewis stated that he is trying to coordinate with NMFS on its biological opinion on the HGMPs and 
consultation for bull trout. He added that the USFWS is planning to draft a letter to clarify their position 
on consultations for the HGMPs and bull trout.  

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 4 

 
 



Twenty-five Mile Creek Update 

Tracy Hillman noted that Chelan PUD extended the Twenty-Five Mile Creek contract with Cascade 
Columbia Fisheries Enhancement Group (project sponsor) until 1 November. He also reported that 
Bryan Nordlund had replied and approved most of the contractor’s responses to the RRFF’s concerns. He 
added that Bryan’s remaining concern was being addressed by the contractor, and that a report from 
the project sponsor should be available soon. Tracy noted that the RRFF may receive a proposal for 
funding to do the work in the future. Patrick Verhey shared that he had recently been in the Twenty-Five 
Mile Creek watershed and that he saw the engineering challenges there first hand. Discussion took place 
regarding a possible site visit if there is a future funding request for this project. 

Action Item:   

• Tracy Hillman will send the final design report on Twenty-Five Mile Creek to the RRFF when it 
is received. 

Milfoil Treatment Proposal 

Steve Lewis reported that he had received an e-mail stating that Chelan County plans to move forward 
with the application of triclopyr BEE (butoxyethyl ester, which is an aquatic herbicide), which is a less 
lethal version of the originally proposed herbicide. Steve Hemstrom stated that he had not received the 
e-mail, but that triclopyr BEE would be preferable to the herbicide that had been initially proposed. 
Steve Lewis added that he will forward the e-mail to Steve Hemstrom. Pat Irle also requested to see a 
copy of the email.   

VII. White Sturgeon 

Juvenile Rearing 

Lance Keller reported that he followed up with Blue Leaf Environmental on his October action item to 
seek their recommendation on stocking levels for 2014. Lance was told that at this time there are no 
monitoring data that would indicate what number should be stocked in 2014. He added that during a 
recent conference call with the co-managers, a full stocking plan of 6,500 was proposed. Chelan PUD 
had no objection to this number for release in 2014. Chad Jackson stated that he thinks that this number 
is fine for the time being. Lance added that this is the last year for stocking at this level, and that after 
this year, stocking levels will have to be determined. Lance added that this is the most diverse group so 
far, and that all families will be equally represented if we stock the full 6,500 fish. Jason McLellan 
cautioned that although this is the most diverse group of crosses used to date, it still does not meet the 
goal of the plan. Steve Lewis also questioned the stocking of 6,500 juveniles given the number of 
crosses. Discussion took place regarding the best number of fish to stock, considering the genetic 
implications. Tracy Hillman reported that, based on genetic concerns, Grant PUD proposed to release 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 5 

 
 



4,332 juvenile sturgeon into their project area in 2014. These fish are from the same broodstock that 
produced Chelan’s fish. Jason said that the Grant proposal was based on releasing 361 juveniles per 
cross (the maximum release of 6,500 juveniles is a result of 18 crosses). Because there were 12 crosses, 
it was proposed that 4,332 sturgeon be released (12 crosses x 361 juveniles per cross = 4,332 juveniles). 
The Yakama Nation and Umatilla Tribes opposed this proposal and recommended that all 6,500 
juveniles be released in 2014. Tracy summarized the discussion and added that because the fish 
released into both the Priest Rapids/Wanapum and Rocky Reach project areas come from the same 
broodstock, it may be important to release the same number of fish in both areas based on the best 
available science. Pat Irle recommended that the best possible science be used (considering the long-
term genetic implications). The RRFF decided to table this discussion until the December meeting. 
Donella Miller, Yakama Nation, joined the call and agreed to table the discussion until the next meeting. 
Tracy asked Lance about the amount of time it takes to receive tags after they are ordered. Lance said 
that the turnaround time for a tag order would be short and shouldn’t affect the timetable significantly. 
Lance also noted that the settlement agreement states that 1% of the release group will be tagged with 
acoustic tags.    

Action Item:   

• The RRFF will continue discussion in December on the number of juvenile white sturgeon to 
release in 2014. 

Juvenile Monitoring 

Lance Keller reported that the first year of monitoring in the Rocky Reach pool is complete and that 
there were 575 recaptures -- 424 fish from the 2013 release, six fish from 2012, and 114 from 2011. 
They found that using squid instead of crickets worked best for capturing juvenile sturgeon. He added 
that one fish from the 2011 release was over 600 mm. He noted that 31 individuals had shed their PIT 
tag. These fish were injected with new PIT tags. Lance added that they will look at shed rates in the 
hatchery. Jason McLellan stated that in the upper Columbia, fish were tagged 2 to 3 months before 
release and that their tag retention rate was 95%. Discussion took place regarding the methods used to 
ensure high tag retention. Lance added that Blue Leaf Environmental should have their draft monitoring 
report to Chelan PUD by the first of the year. He stated that many fish from Entiat and Daroga were 
recaptured in the Wells tailrace.   

VIII. Next Steps 

Tracy Hillman stated that the next RRFF meeting falls in the week of the Army Corps of Engineers’ 
Anadromous Fish Evaluation Program (AFEP) meeting. Because several members and participants of the 
RRFF will be attending the AFEP meeting, the group agreed to move the next meeting to Tuesday, 10 
December 2013 from 1:00 to 4:00 p.m. in the Chelan PUD Second Floor Conference Room.    

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 6 

 
 



Attachment 1: 

Presentation by Patrick Verhey Regarding Pacific Lamprey 
Assessments and Recovery Actions in the Mid-Columbia River. 

 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 7 

 
 



 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 8 

 
 



 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 9 

 
 



 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 10 

 
 



 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 11 

 
 



 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 12 

 
 



 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 13 

 
 



 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 14 

 
 



 

 

 

 
Rocky Reach Fish Forum Final Meeting Minutes 
6 November 2013 
 
 

 
Page 15 

 
 


	I. Welcome and Introductions
	II. Review of Agenda
	III. Review and Approval of Meeting Minutes
	IV. Water Quality
	Update on Water Quality in Macrophyte Beds Report

	V. Pacific Lamprey
	Rocky Reach Project Effects (No Net Impact)

	VI. Resident Fish
	VII. White Sturgeon
	VIII. Next Steps

